## DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA OFFICIAL CODE

# TITLE 3. DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS.

CHAPTER 14.

SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT

COMMISSION.[REPEALED]

2001 Edition

#### DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA OFFICIAL CODE

## CHAPTER 14. SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION.[REPEALED]

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

| § 3-1401. Declaration of policy.[Repealed]                                                                                                           |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| § 3-1402. Definitions.[Repealed]                                                                                                                     |
| § 3-1403. Establishment of the District of Columbia Sports and Entertainment Commission.[Repealed]                                                   |
| § 3-1404. Board members qualifications; terms of office; removal; compensation.[Repealed]                                                            |
| § 3-1405. Executive Director.[Repealed]                                                                                                              |
| § 3-1406. Powers.[Repealed]                                                                                                                          |
| § 3-1407. Power to develop, construct and maintain facilities.[Repealed]                                                                             |
| § 3-1408. Power to own and operate professional sports franchises.[Repealed]                                                                         |
| § 3-1409. Creation of fund, transfer of monies.[Repealed]                                                                                            |
| § 3-1410. Financial affairs.[Repealed]                                                                                                               |
| § 3-1411. Delegation of bond and note issuance authority.[Repealed]                                                                                  |
| § 3-1412. Bonds; issuance; terms.[Repealed]                                                                                                          |
| § 3-1413. Public or private bond sale.[Repealed]                                                                                                     |
| § 3-1414. Tax exemption.[Repealed]                                                                                                                   |
| § 3-1415. Conflicting relationships or interests.[Repealed]                                                                                          |
| § 3-1416. Local, small, and disadvantaged business program.[Repealed]                                                                                |
| § 3-1417. Employees of the Sports and Entertainment Commission.[Repealed]                                                                            |
| § 3-1418. Assumption of nonmilitary functions of Armory Board; construction; effect of dissolution of Sports and Entertainment Commission.[Repealed] |
| § 3-1418.01. Development, construction, and leasing of ballpark.[Repealed]                                                                           |
| § 3-1419. Annual report.[Repealed]                                                                                                                   |

# CHAPTER 14. SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION.[REPEALED]

#### § 3-1401. DECLARATION OF POLICY. [REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 2, 41 DCR 4636; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4001.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

Law 10-152, the "Omnibus Sports Consolidation Act of 1994," was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 10-424, which was referred to the Committee on Public Services and Youth Affairs. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on May 3, 1994, and June 7, 1994, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on June 30, 1994, it was assigned Act No. 10-265 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D.C. Law 10-152 became effective on August 23, 1994.

Law 12-115, the "Omnibus Sports Consolidation Amendment Act of 1998," was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 12-417. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on February 3, 1998, and March 3, 1998, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on March 17, 1998, it was assigned Act No. 12-312 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D.C. Law 12-115 became effective on June 6, 1998.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: Section 19(c) of D.C. Law 10-152 provided that the provisions of the act are to be liberally construed so as to effectuate those powers which are specifically enumerated.

#### § 3-1402. DEFINITIONS. [REPEALED]

 $(Aug.\ 23,\ 1994,\ D.C.\ Law\ 10-152,\ \S\ 3,\ 41\ DCR\ 4636;\ Mar.\ 23,\ 1995,\ D.C.\ Law\ 10-246,\ \S\ 8(a),\ 42\ DCR\ 452;\ June\ 6,\ 1998,\ D.C.\ Law\ 12-115,\ \S\ 2,\ 45\ DCR\ 1957;\ Mar.\ 3,\ 2010,\ D.C.\ Law\ 18-111,\ \S\ 2082(j),\ 57\ DCR\ 181.)$ 

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4002.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

Law 10-246, the "Recreation Act of 1994," was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 10-741, which was referred to the Committee on Public Services and Youth Affairs. The Bill was adopted on first and second

readings on November 1, 1994, and December 6, 1994, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on January 13, 1995, it was assigned Act No. 10-393 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D.C. Law 10-246 became effective on March 23, 1995.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

## § 3-1403. ESTABLISHMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 4, 41 DCR 4636; Mar. 23, 1995, D.C. Law 10-246, § 8(b), 42 DCR 452; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4003.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary amendment of section, see § 8 (b) of the Recreation Emergency Act of 1995 (D.C. Act 11-20, February 28, 1995, 42 DCR 1175).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-246, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1402.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Transfer of Functions

Transfer of nonmilitary functions to Sports Commission: Section 19 of D.C. Law 10-152, provided, in part, that the Sports Commission shall assume all nonmilitary functions of the Armory Board as are set forth in § 2-306 [repealed] and that all references to the Armory Board in subchapter II of Chapter 3 of Title 2 [subchapter II of Chapter 3 of Title 3, 2001 Ed.] are intended to be references to the Sports Commission unless the clear meaning requires otherwise.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

Annual reports of Sports Commission: Section 20 of D.C. Law 10-152 provided that the Sports Commission shall file with the Mayor and the Council each year a financial statement relating to the activities and business of the Sports Commission during the preceding fiscal year certified as to accuracy by an independent auditor.

Section 2 of D.C. Law 10-206 amended § 19 of D.C. Law 10-152 by adding (e) and (f) which contain provisions authorizing the Armory Board to exercise its nonmilitary functions and authority on an interim basis and ratifying actions taken by the Board during the interim period.

For temporary amendment of D.C. Law 10-152, authorizing the Armory Board to exercise its nonmilitary functions and authority on an interim basis, see § 2 of the Armory Board Interim Authority Emergency Amendment Act of 1994 (D.C. Act 10-325, October 14, 1994, 41 DCR 7027) and § 2 of the Armory Board Interim Authority Congressional Adjournment Emergency Amendment Act of 1995 (D.C. Act 11-5, January 19, 1995, 42 DCR 545).

Title of land and improvements acquired by Commission: Section 601(g) of D.C. Law 10-188 provided that all land and improvements on the land acquired by the Sports Commission shall be held in the name of the Sports Commission except that title to the property shall not be transferred by the Sports Commission to any person or entity other than the District of Columbia government.

#### REMOVAL; COMPENSATION.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 5, 41 DCR 4636; Sept. 28, 1994, D.C. Law 10-188, § 601(a), 41 DCR 5333; Mar. 23, 1995, D.C. Law 10-246, § 8(c), 42 DCR 452; July 20, 1996, D.C. Law 11-145, § 2, 43 DCR 2842; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; June 12, 1999, D.C. Law 12-285, § 4(b), 46 DCR 1355; Oct. 19, 2002, D.C. Law 14-213, § 9, 49 DCR 8140; Jan. 29, 2008, D.C. Law 17-84, § 2, 54 DCR 11891; Mar. 25, 2009, D.C. Law 17-353, § 221, 56 DCR 1117; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4004.

Temporary Amendments of Section

For temporary (225 day) amendment of section, see § 2 of Omnibus Sports Consolidation Act of 1994 Temporary Amendment Act of 1995 (D.C. Law 11-67, October 26, 1995, law notification 42 DCR 6172).

Section 2 of D.C. Law 17-48, in subsec. (a), substituted "13" for "11", "9" for "8", and "with similar responsibilities, and a District government official designated by the Mayor," for "with similar responsibilities,".

Section 4(b) of D.C. Law 17-48 provides that the act shall expire after 225 days of its having taken effect.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary amendment of section, see § 8 (c) of the Recreation Emergency Act of 1995 (D.C. Act 11-20, February 28, 1995, 42 DCR 1175).

For temporary amendment of section, see § 2 of the Omnibus Sports Consolidation Act of 1994 Emergency Amendment Act of 1995 (D.C. Act 11-102, July 21, 1995, 42 DCR 4009).

For temporary amendment of section, see § 2(a) and (b) of the Omnibus Sports Consolidation Act Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 1996 (D.C. Act 11-275, May 29, 1996, 43 DCR 2966).

For temporary amendment of section, see § 4(b) of the Confirmation Emergency Amendment Act of 1999 (D.C. Act 13-25, March 15, 1999, 46 DCR 2971).

For temporary amendment of section, see § 4(b) of the Confirmation Act Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 1999 (D.C. Act 13-92, June 4, 1999, 46 DCR 5330).

For temporary (90-day) amendment of section, see § 4(b) of the Confirmation Act Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 1999 (D.C. Act 13-92, June 4, 1999, 46 DCR 5330).

For temporary (90 day) amendment of section, see § 2 of Omnibus Sports Consolidation Emergency Amendment Act of 2007 (D.C. Act 17-76, July 25, 2007, 54 DCR 7628).

For temporary (90 day) amendment of section, see § 2 of Omnibus Sports Consolidation Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2007 (D.C. Act 17-151, October 18, 2007, 54 DCR 10898).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

Law 10-188, the "Washington Convention Center Authority Act of 1994," was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 10-527, which was referred to the Committee of the Whole. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on July 5, 1994, and July 19, 1994, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on August 2, 1994, it was assigned Act No. 10-314 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D.C. Law 10-188 became effective on September 28, 1994.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-246, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1402.

Law 11-145, the "Omnibus Sports Consolidation Act Amendment Act of 1996," was introduced in Council and Assigned Bill No. 11-349, which was referred to the Committee on Public Services and Regional Authorities. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on April 2, 1996, and May 7, 1996, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on May 20, 1996, it was assigned Act No. 11-269 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D. C. Law 11-145 became effective on July 20, 1996.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

Law 12-285, the "Confirmation Amendment Act of 1998," was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 12-261. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on November 10, 1998, and December 1, 1998,

respectively. Vetoed by the Mayor on December 29, 1998, Council overrode the veto on January 5, 1999, and the Bill was assigned Act No. 12-622 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D.C. Law 12-285 became effective on June 12, 1999.

Law 14-213, the "Technical Amendments Act of 2002", was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 14-671, which was referred to the Committee of the Whole. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on June 4, 2002, and July 2, 2002, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on July 26, 2002, it was assigned Act No. 14-459 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D.C. Law 14-213 became effective on October 19, 2002.

Law 17-84, the "Omnibus Sports Consolidation Amendment Act of 2007", was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 17-286 which was referred to the Committee on Economic Development. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on October 23, 2007, and November 6, 2007, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on November 26, 2007, it was assigned Act No. 17-195 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D.C. Law 17-84 became effective on January 29, 2008.

For Law 17-353, see notes following § 3-308.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

#### § 3-1405. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. [REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 6, 41 DCR 4636; Sept. 28, 1994, D.C. Law 10-188, § 601(b), 41 DCR 5333; Mar. 23, 1995, D.C. Law 10-246, § 8(d), 42 DCR 452; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Feb. 6, 2008, D.C. Law 17-108, § 207(a), 54 DCR 10993; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18- 111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4005.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary amendment of section, see § 8 (d) of the Recreation Emergency Act of 1995 (D.C. Act 11-20, February 28, 1995, 42 DCR 1175).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-188, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1404.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-246, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1402.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following  $\S$  3-1401.

For Law 17-108, see notes following § 3-1303.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

#### § 3-1406. POWERS. [REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 7, 41 DCR 4636; Mar. 23, 1995, D.C. Law 10-246, § 8(e), 42 DCR 452; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4006.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary amendment of section, see § 8 (e) of the Recreation Emergency Act of 1995 (D.C. Act 11-20, February 28, 1995, 42 DCR 1175).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-246, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1402.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

### § 3-1407. POWER TO DEVELOP, CONSTRUCT AND MAINTAIN FACILITIES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 8, 41 DCR 4636; Sept. 28, 1994, D.C. Law 10-188, § 601(c), 41 DCR 5333; Mar. 23, 1995, D.C. Law 10-246, § 8(f), 42 DCR 452; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4007.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary amendment of section, see § 8 (f) of the Recreation Emergency Act of 1995 (D.C. Act 11-20, February 28, 1995, 42 DCR 1175).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-188, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1404.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-246, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1402.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

### § 3-1408. POWER TO OWN AND OPERATE PROFESSIONAL SPORTS FRANCHISES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152,  $\S$  9, 41 DCR 4636; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115,  $\S$  2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111,  $\S$  2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4008.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

#### § 3-1409. CREATION OF FUND, TRANSFER OF MONIES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 10, 41 DCR 4636; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4009.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

#### § 3-1410. FINANCIAL AFFAIRS.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 11, 41 DCR 4636; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Oct. 3, 2001, D.C. Law 14-28, § 1602, 48 DCR 6981; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4010.

Temporary Amendments of Section

For temporary (225 day) amendment of section, see § 4 of Real Property Tax Rates for Tax Year 1996 Temporary Amendment Act of 1995 (D.C. Law 11-86, February 10, 1996, law notification 43 DCR 1312).

For temporary (225 day) amendment of section, see § 2(b) of Sports and Entertainment Commission Financial Affairs Temporary Amendment Act of 2003 (D.C. Law 15-72, February 25, 2004, law notification 51 DCR 3364).

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) amendment of section, see § 1502 of Fiscal Year 2002 Budget Support Emergency Act of 2001 (D.C. Act 14-124, August 3, 2001, 48 DCR 7861).

For temporary (90 day) amendment of section, see § 2(b) of Sports and Entertainment Commission Financial Affairs Emergency Amendment Act of 2003 (D.C. Act 15-173, October 6, 2003, 50 DCR 9177).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review

Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 14-28, see notes following § 3-101.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

## § 3-1411. DELEGATION OF BOND AND NOTE ISSUANCE AUTHORITY.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 12, 41 DCR 4636; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4011.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

#### § 3-1412. BONDS; ISSUANCE; TERMS.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 13, 41 DCR 4636; Sept. 28,1994, D.C. Law 10-188, § 601(d), 41 DCR 5333; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4012.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-188, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1404.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

#### § 3-1413. PUBLIC OR PRIVATE BOND SALE.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 14, 41 DCR 4636; Sept. 28, 1994, D.C. Law 10-188, § 601(e), 41 DCR 5333; Apr. 18, 1996, D.C. Law 11-110, § 8, 43 DCR 530; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4013.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-188, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1404.

Law 11-110, the "Technical Amendments Act of 1996," was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 11-485, which was referred to the Committee of the Whole. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on December 5, 1995, and January 4, 1996, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on January 26, 1996, it was assigned Act No. 11-199 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D.C. Law 11-110 became effective on April 18, 1996.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

#### § 3-1414. TAX EXEMPTION. [REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 15, 41 DCR 4636; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(i), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4014.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

#### § 3-1415. CONFLICTING RELATIONSHIPS OR INTERESTS.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 16, 41 DCR 4636; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4015.

Temporary Amendments of Section

For temporary (225 day) amendment of section, see § 2 of Sports Commission Conflict of Interest Temporary Amendment Act of 1996 (D.C. Law 11-141, June 13, 1996, law notification 43 DCR 3369).

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary amendment of section, see § 2 of the Sports Commission Emergency Amendment Act of 1996 (D.C. Act 11-226, March 15, 1996, 43 DCR 1534).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

## § 3-1416. LOCAL, SMALL, AND DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS PROGRAM.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 17, 41 DCR 4636; Sept. 28, 1994, D.C. Law 10-188, § 601(f), 41 DCR 5333; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4016.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-188, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1404.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

## § 3-1417. EMPLOYEES OF THE SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION.[REPEALED]

 $(Aug.\ 23,\ 1994,\ D.C.\ Law\ 10-152,\ \S\ 18,\ 41\ DCR\ 4636;\ Mar.\ 23,\ 1995,\ D.C.\ Law\ 10-246,\ \S\ 8(g),\ 42\ DCR\ 452;\ June\ 6,\ 1998,\ D.C.\ Law\ 12-115,\ \S\ 2,\ 45\ DCR\ 1957;\ Feb.\ 6,\ 2008,\ D.C.\ Law\ 17-108,\ \S\ 207(b),\ 54\ DCR\ 10993;\ Mar.\ 3,\ 2010,\ D.C.\ Law\ 18-111,\ \S\ 2082(j),\ 57\ DCR\ 181.)$ 

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4017.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary amendment of section, see § 8 (g) of the Recreation Emergency Act of 1995 (D.C. Act 11-20, February 28, 1995, 42 DCR 1175).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-246, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1402.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 17-108, see notes following § 3-1303.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

Miscellaneous Notes

Construction of Law 10-152: See note to § 3-1401.

## § 3-1418. ASSUMPTION OF NONMILITARY FUNCTIONS OF ARMORY BOARD; CONSTRUCTION; EFFECT OF DISSOLUTION OF SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 19, 41 DCR 4636; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4018.

Temporary Amendments of Section

For temporary (225 day) amendment of section, see § 2 of Armory Board Interim Authority Temporary Amendment Act of 1994 (D.C. Law 10-206, March 14, 1995, law notification 42 DCR 1523).

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary amendment of D.C. Law 10-152, authorizing the Armory Board to exercise its nonmilitary functions and authority on an interim basis, see § 2 of the Armory Board Interim Authority Emergency Amendment Act of 1994 (D.C. Act 10-325, October 14, 1994, 41 DCR 7027) and § 2 of the Armory Board Interim Authority Congressional Adjournment Emergency Amendment Act of 1995 (D.C. Act 11-5, January 19, 1995, 42 DCR 545).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

## § 3-1418.01. DEVELOPMENT, CONSTRUCTION, AND LEASING OF BALLPARK.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 19a, as added Apr. 8, 2005, D.C. Law 15-320, § 109, 52 DCR 1757; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

Law 15-320, the "Ballpark Omnibus Financing and Revenue Act of 2004", was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 15-1028, which was referred to the Committee of Finance and Revenue. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on November 30, 2004, and December 21, 2004, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on December 29, 2004, it was assigned Act No. 15-717 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review. D.C. Law 15-320 became effective on April 8, 2005.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.

#### § 3-1419. ANNUAL REPORT. [REPEALED]

(Aug. 23, 1994, D.C. Law 10-152, § 20, 41 DCR 4636; June 6, 1998, D.C. Law 12-115, § 2, 45 DCR 1957; Feb. 6, 2008, D.C. Law 17-108, § 207(c), 54 DCR 10993; Mar. 3, 2010, D.C. Law 18-111, § 2082(j), 57 DCR 181.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 2-4019.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year 2010 Budget Support Second Emergency Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-207, October 15, 2009, 56 DCR 8234).

For temporary (90 day) repeal, see § 2082(j) of Fiscal Year Budget Support Congressional Review Emergency Amendment Act of 2009 (D.C. Act 18-260, January 4, 2010, 57 DCR 345).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 10-152, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 12-115, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 3-1401.

For Law 17-108, see notes following § 3-1303.

For Law 18-111, see notes following § 3-343.01.